
 
           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

   
 
  MAYOR        CITY CLERK 

             Bryce Ward – Borough Rep                          Kathy Weber, MMC   
            888-4444                488-8583  

 
  COUNCIL MEMBERS        

Kevin McCarthy- Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem 590-0800 
Avery Thompson    388-5351 
David Skipps     750-5106   
Santa Claus       388-3836 
Thomas McGhee – Mayor Pro Tem  455-0010 
Doug Isaacson  - Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 322-3133 

  
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
  
2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag 
 
3. Invocation   

  
4. Approval of the Agenda 

 
5. Approval of the Minutes  

• Regular City Council Meeting of January 17, 2017 
• Special Meeting, Executive Session of January 30, 2017 

 
6. Communications from the Mayor 
 
7.    Council Member Questions of the Mayor 
 
8.    Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City 
       Clerk  
   
9.   Ongoing Projects Report 

CITY OF NORTH POLE Alaska 
 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Monday, February 6, 2017  

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 p.m.  
Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



  
10.  Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 
 
 
11.  Old Business.  

a.    Ordinance 17-01, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend Title 4, 
Revenue and Finance, by creating 4.03, Budget Procedures 
 

b.   Ordinance 17-02, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend Title 4, 
Revenue and Finance, chapter 08, sales tax, by deleting Marijuana taxation 

 
12.  New Business 

a.   Ordinance 17-03, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend Chapter    
   8.04, Nuisances. 
 
b.    Ordinance 17-04, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend 2017 Budget  
       by transferring $148,160 to the Mixing Zone Compliance Project for amendment #4 to 
       the professional services agreement with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. 
 
c.   Ordinance 17-05, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend 2017 Budget  
       by transferring $17,000 from the general fund to replace the boiler at the Public Works 
       shop. 
 
d.    Ordinance 17-06, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend the 2017 
       Budget by accepting the Bryne Jag Grant and adjusting the Police Department Budget. 
 
e.  Resolution 17-01, A Resolution of the City of North Pole, Alaska supporting and 
       encouraging renewable energy sources by enhancing policies that equally supports 
       private and public ventures and encourages system efficiencies.    

 
13.  Council Comments 
 
14.  Adjournment 
 
The City of North Pole will provide an interpreter at City Council meetings for hearing 
impaired individuals.  The City does require at least 48 hours’ notice to arrange for this 
service.  All such requests are subject to the availability of an interpreter.  All City Council 
meetings are recorded on CD.  These CD’s are available for listening or duplication at the City 
Clerk’s Office during regular business hours, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
or can be purchased for $10.00 per CD. The City Clerk’s Office is located in City Hall, 125 
Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

January 17, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   1 
Minutes 

January 17, 2017 

 

 

 

 

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 P.M. 

      Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 P.M. 

 

A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Tuesday, January 17, 2017 in the 

Council Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Mayor Ward called the regular City Council meeting of Tuesday, January 17, 2017 to order at  

7:00 p.m. 

                 

There were present:     Absent/Excused 

Mr. McCarthy – Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem          

Mr. Isaacson - Deputy Mayor Pro Tem   

Mr. Thompson         

Mr. McGhee - Mayor Pro Tem              

Mr. Claus        

Mr. Skipps            

Mayor Ward – Borough Rep    

 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG 

Led by Mayor Ward 

 

 

INVOCATION  
Invocation was given by Councilman Isaacson 

 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

 

Mr. McGhee moved to approve the agenda of January 17, 2017 

 

Seconded by Mr. Claus 

 

DISCUSSION 

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to consent the following items under New Business: 

 

a.    Liquor license renewal for 2 Go Mart #112 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

January 17, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   2 
Minutes 

January 17, 2017 

 

 

b.   Request for tuition reimbursement for Detective Emily Gibson in the amount of $1,848 

for 2017 Winter Semester. 

c.    Ordinance 17-01, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend Title 4, 

Revenue and Finance, by creating 4.03, Budget Procedures 

d.   Ordinance 17-02, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend Title 4, 

Revenue and Finance, chapter 08, sales tax, by deleting Marijuana taxation 

 

Seconded by Mr. Isaacson  

 

On the amendment 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

PASSED 

Yes:  7– McGhee, McCarthy, Thompson, Claus, Isaacson, Skipps Mayor Ward 

No:  0 

Absent:   

 

On the Agenda as amended 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

PASSED 

Yes:  7– McGhee, McCarthy, Thompson, Claus, Isaacson, Skipps Mayor Ward 

No:  0 

Absent:   

 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to approve the Minutes of January 3, 2016 

 

Seconded by Mr. McCarthy 

 

Discussion 

None  

 

PASSED 

Yes:  7– McGhee, McCarthy, Thompson, Claus, Isaacson, Skipps Mayor Ward 

No:  0 



Regular City Council Meeting 

January 17, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   3 
Minutes 

January 17, 2017 

 

 

Absent:   

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

The Alaska DEC is starting a saturation study of the North Pole area to determine if the North 

Star Fire Station Air Quality Monitor on Hurst is representative of the area.  The DEC is looking 

for 10 people- properties who would be able to provide a place for the monitors to be placed and 

a 120 volt outlet to power the equipment.  Unfortunately the locations are pretty specific so they 

will be contacting residents to ask permission to locate the monitors.  For more information 

please contact Barbara Trost with DEC at Barbara.trost@alaska.gov 

I have received a request for the City of North Pole to comment on the AKLNG project to 

FERC.  The proposed comments make the statement that due diligence has not been completed 

on the Valdez route and it should be reconsidered, The request is that the City of North Pole, 

Fairbanks and the FNSB sign as a signatory.  

I will begin working on establishing a schedule of violations for the City code and would like to 

form either a committee or workgroup of the council to develop the framework.  Up to three 

council member (including myself) would be able to work together if there is insufficient interest 

in forming a committee.  Please let me know if you are interested.   

City staff and the mayor will be meeting with the Borough in February to discuss how the city 

and the borough can work together better for emergency management.  Ideas and possible 

agreements will be discussed in the future.   

Student of the Month 

 Rhiannon Powell – NPMS 

 

North Pole King & Queen 

 Buddy & Karen Lane 

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR 

 None 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 

REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK 

 

Fire Dept., Deputy Chief Coon 

 Participated in Interior Fire Chiefs Association and elected secretary.   

 Participated in Chief Warren Cummings memorial. 

 High profile fires in the City on Santa Claus Lane and on Refinery Loop. 

mailto:Barbara.trost@alaska.gov


Regular City Council Meeting 

January 17, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   4 
Minutes 

January 17, 2017 

 

 

 Emergency Operations in force with cold weather. Expect to see more fires with the cold 

weather, chimney fires, etc. 

 Will loan out chimney brushes for anyone wishing to clean their chimney. 

 Still have a Lt. position open with the fire department. 

 

Police Dept., Chief Dutra 

 Sgt. Bellant did drug presentation. 

 Testing of blood alcohol level with soldiers. 

 Terri Nelson will be going to car seat class in Anchorage to keep certified. 

 Will have two openings with the Police Department.  It is a 9 month process and hard to 

get people through.   The requirements from the Alaska Police Standards are very 

stringent for hiring officers. 

 He brought the new laptops to council and said that most are deployed into the cars.  The 

antennae’s are the last thing to be installed and the system is integrating well. 

 Attended the retirement party for two FPD.   

 Talked with AlasConnect on the cameras for the Memorial Park and in cameras in the 

station. 

 Working on new fleet inspection for vehicles. Each vehicle will have a 3rd party 

inspection and will help with a rotation of a vehicle. 

 Pet peeve is SB91.  Criminal justice committee is listening and they are looking at 

making some changes. 

 

Finance, Tricia Fogarty 

 Financials are on the dais.  

 Grants are being looked at again to bring into balance. 

 Other financial corrections are being made. 

 Delinquent reports are before council. 

 As of yesterday our City was 64 years old. 

 I.T. will be upgrading Caselle, the City financial software, to Connect. 

 Online demo was provided today for online sales tax and payment. It would make things 

easier for the public to remit. 

 

Director of City Services, Bill Butler 

Building Department 

 No new projects submitted to the Building Department. 

Public Works 

 Significant snowfalls at the end of 2016 and early 2017 have kept Public Works busy. 

 December 30 snow event was a large event that I authorized calling out additional 

snowplowing assistance to help get the roads cleared quickly for News Year’s Eve. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

January 17, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   5 
Minutes 

January 17, 2017 

 

 

 The second snow removal of 2017 is currently underway. 

 Public Works was going into the end of 2016 having spent none of that year’s 

snowplow budget. 

 The snowplowing that is now underway may need to be halted if the temperatures 

reach 40 below—the equipment does not operate well under those conditions. 

Utility Department 

 Utility experienced a short power outage on December 30 at the Holiday Road lift 

station—the largest lift station in the City. 

 The severity of the predicted winds did not materialize so this was the only power 

outage for the Utility. 

 The Utility’s boilers that add heat to the water supply were only recently 

turned on. 

 Temperature of the water returning to the water treatment plant reached 33 degrees. 

 Last year the Utility did not run these boilers until February and then only two-weeks 

on and two weeks off. 

 If you see the large Utility tank truck parked in the street, it is likely dumping water down 

the sewer mains that have limited flow to help keep the sewer main from freezing. 

 Utility is working with NTL Alaska to develop a workshop for commercial kitchens to 

help reduce the amount of fats, oil and grease (FOG) in the sewer system. 

 This is the second step in the Utility’s effort to help control FOG in the sewer system. 

 FOG reduction helps prevent sewer backups and helps reduce operating costs for the 

Utility. 

 The sulfolane lawsuit revealed that the Utility needs Certificates of Public Convenience 

and Necessity (CPCN) for the water and sewer utilities. 

 The original CPCNs (water and sewer) were issued in 1973 for a ½ section that is 

now the City’s core. 

 All the Utility’s expansions outside of the original CPCNs are technically 

unauthorized. 

 I am working to generate a CPCN submittal to encompass the entire City limits and to 

propose a CPCN for the area encompassed by the sulfolane plume. 

Natural Gas Utility Board 

 IGU and AIDEA agreed to a Memorandum of Understanding for IGU to purchase 

Pentex’s assets, include Fairbanks Natural Gas, to create a unified gas utility in the 

Interior. 

 Goal is to have the formal agreement signed by mid-March. 

 Success of the project still hinges on a gas supply contract that is being negotiated. 

 

Borough Representative 



Regular City Council Meeting 

January 17, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   6 
Minutes 

January 17, 2017 

 

 

 FSNB did change the Animal Ordinance. 

  

City Clerk’s Office, Kathy Weber 

 Schedule of Violations request was sent out to the Alaska Clerks and received responses 

and have forwarded them on to the Mayor and Police Chief. 

 Tia Schrader received her gift basket and diaper cake today from the City of North Pole.  

There were many items inside the basket and a list with the donors is on the dais.  Baby 

Myra was born on January 1, 2017 at 2:11 p.m. at Bassett Army Hospital.  She weighed 

9lbs 9 oz and joins her three older siblings.  Channel 13 news was here today and did a 

spotlight on the new baby and Mom. 

 I attended the 2nd quarter Honor Roll and Awards at NPMS on January 10th and 12th.  I 

was amazed at the percentage of students that made the 6th grade honor roll.  After the 

ceremony I contacted the school counselors at NPMS and NPHS and was taken back as 

to the percentages:  

 1.  6th grade – 66% 

 2.  7th grade – 62% 

 3.  8th grade – 55% 

 4.  9th grade – 32% 

 5.  10th grade-13% 

 6.  11th grade-20% 

 7.  12th grade-23% 

 The newsletter is going very well.  We have started an Employee Spotlight and Paul 

Trissel will be the February employee.  We also have the Senior Spotlight and Francie 

Cork will be featured in February as well.  

 W2’s were sent out today. 

 I will be out of the office from January 25th – February 14th.  If you need assistance you 

can contact Sally Terch.  She will be filling in for me while I’m gone.  Of course you can 

always reach me by cell phone or by email. 

 Next meeting will be held on Monday, February 6, 2017. 

 

 

ONGOING PROJECTS 

 Agnew::Beck – Strategic Planning Implementation 

Tasks 

1. Conduct Assessment Kickoff – Meet with Mayor Ward and key members of the City 

Council and staff to review study area, expectations, process, timeline, and roles for the 



Regular City Council Meeting 

January 17, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   7 
Minutes 

January 17, 2017 

 

 

assessment process. 

2. Reevaluate City of North Pole Commercial District Zoning – Work with Mayor Ward, City 

Council and key staff to identify and conduct outreach to business owners located in areas 

zoned “general use”. Assess business owner interest in rezoning as “commercial district”. 

As part of this task, develop clear, concise outreach tools that explain current and potential 

changes to City zoning, and impact on existing/future businesses. Develop summary of 

business owner feedback, including any concerns, questions and/or likelihood of 

supporting rezone. 

3. Assess Community Retail Needs 

a. Start with existing data including background research from the City’s 

comprehensive strategic plan process including: survey and stakeholder interview 

results; summary of existing/previous studies and plans such as the 2016 

Fairbanks North Star Borough Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 

and the North Pole Radius Study. Supplement existing date with other 

business/retail-specific plans, research or studies conducted on the Fairbanks 

North Star Borough, Eielson Air Force Base, and the City of North Pole, 

specifically. 

b. Interview other relevant stakeholders including Eielson Air Force Base F-35 

beddown lead/team to gain a better understanding of potential retail needs for 

incoming troops and their families. 

4. Identify Potential Retailer Needs and Opportunities 

a. Inventory Commercial Property – Identify, and, if not already in existence, 

develop a database of potential retail real estate opportunities in the City and the 

Greater North Pole Area (99705 area code). The geographic boundaries of this 

search may extend beyond the 99705 area code to more accurately assess 

potential competition. 

b. Inventory Existing Retail in Competing Markets and Analyze the Competition 

i. Using the outcomes of Task 3 to inform an inventory of existing 

retail on Eielson Air Force Base, in Fairbanks, and along the 

Richardson Highway (outside the City of North Pole limits). 

 Develop a list of retailers in the above locations that do not exist 

in the City of North Pole, or the Great North Pole Area. 

 As part of the inventory process, visit retail operations (especially 

those that align with community needs as assessed in Task 3) and 

interview retail management with the goal of better understanding 

their site selection process – how do they make the decision to open 

a store or set of stores? What are the specific criteria? Who are the 

decision makers? 

 Identify competitor’s (EAFB, Fairbanks) strengths, weaknesses, 

opportunities, and threats to potential retailers. How does the City 

and Greater North Pole Area compare? What qualities would or 

would not attract future retailers? 



Regular City Council Meeting 

January 17, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   8 
Minutes 

January 17, 2017 

 

 

 Identify and interview brokers and tenant representatives that work 

mostly with retail tenants in the Fairbanks North Star Borough. Get 

their perspective on what retail tenants are seeking in terms of 

location, space, and other desired conditions. 

c. Identify potential implementation/marketing strategies for recruiting retail to the 

City of North Pole/the Greater North Pole Area. Examples include: 

i. Work with the Fairbanks North Star Borough Economic Development 

Corporation and the Chambers of Commerce to sell the region first and 

City of North Pole second. Retailers are not looking for one location, like 

an industrial prospect, but want to expand in the region with multiple 

outlets for effective product distribution. 

ii. Develop and practice a well thought out “one-minute/60 second” 

elevator speech on North Pole from the retailers’ point of view. 

iii. Develop customized electronic or hard copy marketing materials 

targeting retailers in “their language”, with a concise, visual message that 

speaks to their specific needs. 

iv. Attend retail conferences and trade shows. Use customized marketing 

materials to target specific retailers and tenant representatives. Try to book 

meetings in advance of the conference to ensure the retailers presence and 

adequate time to showcase North Pole. For example, identify franchises 

that will fill a void in North Pole and focus energy on recruiting a potential 

franchise that is already located in the area (e.g., Fred Meyer). 

v. Ensure marketing materials are clearly marked and easily accessible on the 

City’s website and social media. 

vi. Conduct numerous “touches” and different types of touches (e.g., calls, 

letters, meetings, company headquarter visits) with potential retailers. 

5. Develop a Draft and Final Assessment of Retail Needs and Opportunities for the City of 

North Pole/Greater North Pole Area 

a. Use the results of Tasks 1 – 4 to develop a draft assessment report. Conduct a 

work session with to share preliminary results and get input from Mayor Ward, 

City Council and department heads. As relevant, share preliminary results with 

other stakeholders including Eielson Air Force Base and Fairbanks North Star 

Borough leadership and staff. 

b. Based on stakeholder feedback, especially direction from Mayor Ward and the City 

Council, revise and finalize the assessment report, including initial implementation 

steps. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

January 17, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   9 
Minutes 

January 17, 2017 

 

 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 

 None 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

None 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 Consented 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Mr. McGhee moved to recess into executive session to discuss the status of the sulfolane 

litigation 

 

Seconded by Mr. Isaacson 

 

Passed Unanimously 

 

The meeting was reconvened at 9:18 p.m. 

 

Mr. Isaacson moved to authorize the City Attorney to proceed to the finalization of the 

discussed settlement agreement 

 

Seconded by McGhee 

 

PASSED 

Yes:  7– McGhee, McCarthy, Thompson, Claus, Isaacson, Skipps Mayor Ward 

No:  0 

Absent:   

 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

None  

 

Mr. McGhee moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:21 p.m. 

 

Seconded by Mr. Isaacson 

 

The regular meeting of Tuesday, January 17, 2017 adjourned at 9:21p.m.  

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

January 17, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   10 
Minutes 

January 17, 2017 

 

 

These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 

Council on Monday, February 6, 2017.  

  

  

       ____________________________________ 

        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

  

___________________________________ 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk      



Special City Council Meeting 
January 30, 2017 

6:30 p.m. 
 
 

   1 
Minutes 
January 30, 2017 
 
 

 
 Special Meeting, Executive Session – 6:30 P.M. 

 
A special meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, January 30, 2017 in the 
Council Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
Mayor Ward called the special City Council meeting of Monday, January 30, 2017 to order at  
6:33 p.m. 
                 
There were present:     Absent/Excused 
Mr. McCarthy – Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem          
Mr. Isaacson - Deputy Mayor Pro Tem   
Mr. Thompson         
Mr. McGhee - Mayor Pro Tem              
Mr. Claus        
Mr. Skipps            
Mayor Ward – Borough Rep    
 
Mr. McGhee moved to recess into Executive Session to authorize Mayor Ward to execute 
the settlement agreement with Flint Hills Resource Alaska in the City of North Pole, Alaska 
vs. Flint Hills Resources Alaska and Alaska Petroleum Inc., litigation.  
                      
Seconded by Mr. Isaacson 
 
Discussion 
None 
 
Recessed to go into Executive Session at 6:37 p.m. 
 
Mayor Ward called the meeting back to order at 7:26 p.m. 
 
Mr. Isaacson moved to authorize Mayor Ward to execute the settlement agreement with 
Flint Hills Resource Alaska and the State of Alaska in the City of North Pole, Alaska vs 
Flint Hills Resource Alaska and Alaska Petroleum Inc. litigation and to authorize the 
Mayor and the City attorney to pursue such exhibits, or supplemental letters, consistent 
with the discussion in Executive Session. 
 
Seconded by Mr. McGhee 
 
 
 
 

 



Special City Council Meeting 
January 30, 2017 

6:30 p.m. 
 
 

   2 
Minutes 
January 30, 2017 
 
 

PASSED 
Yes:  5– Thompson, Skipps, Claus, McGhee, McCarthy, Isaacson, Mayor Ward 
No:  0 
Absent:  0 
 
Council Comments 
None 
 
Mr. McGhee moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:31 p.m. 
 
Seconded by Mr. Isaacson 
 
The special meeting of Monday, January 30, 2017 adjourned at 7:31 p.m.   
  
  
       ____________________________________ 
        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
___________________________________ 
Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 
North Pole City Clerk      



































Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: February 6, 2017 

Possible Adoption:  February 21, 2017 
 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 
 2 

ORDINANCE 17-03 3 
 4 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO 5 

AMEND CHAPTER 8.04, NUISANCES  6 
  7 

WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing requirement; 8 

and  9 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 10 

requirements of the City and to clarify questionable areas. 11 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole: 12 

 13 

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 14 

 15 

Section 2.  Chapter 8.04  is hereby amended in the North Pole Code of Ordinances as follows:  16 

[new text in italicized, underlined red font; deleted text in red strikethrough font]; 17 

 18 

Chapter 8.04 NUISANCES 19 

Sections: 20 

8.04.005    Marijuana oil, flammable extraction – Prohibited. 21 

8.04.010    Garbage and rubbish – Accumulation – When prohibited. 22 

8.04.020    Garbage – Receptacles – Removal. 23 

8.04.030    Garbage – Deposit only in places designated. 24 

8.04.040    Garbage allowing to contaminate water. 25 

8.04.050    Garbage. 26 

8.04.060    Dense smoke. 27 

8.04.070    Soot, cinders, noxious acids, fumes and gases. 28 

8.04.080    Unwholesome wells or ground water. 29 

8.04.090    Fecal matter – Privies. 30 

8.04.100    Fecal matter – Privies – Place of deposit to be designated. 31 

8.04.110    Urinal – Requirements. 32 

8.04.120    Filthy stables. 33 

8.04.130    Undressed dead animals. 34 

8.04.140    Mad dogs and vicious dogs. 35 

8.04.150    Open excavations, basements and pits. 36 

8.04.160    Disturbing the peace. 37 

8.04.170    Abatement – Notices – Costs – Fines. 38 

 39 

 40 

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.005
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.060
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.070
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.090
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.100
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.110
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.120
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.130
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.140
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.150
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.160
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.170


Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: February 6, 2017 

Possible Adoption:  February 21, 2017 
 

8.04.005 Marijuana oil, flammable extraction – Prohibited.  41 

A.    Methods to process marijuana oil using a flammable extraction method are hereby 42 

prohibited within North Pole City limits. 43 

B.    “Flammable extraction method” is defined as using a flammable or explosive chemical, 44 

series of chemicals or fluid to extract oil from a marijuana plant. 45 

C.    Methods of marijuana oil extraction that do not involve flammable or explosive materials 46 

are not a violation of this section. 47 

D.    A person or corporation that processes marijuana oil using a flammable extraction method is 48 

in violation of this section and subject to a $1,500 (fifteen-hundred-dollar) $1,000 (one thousand 49 

dollar) fine. (Ord. 15-01 § 2, 2015) 50 

8.04.010 Garbage and rubbish – Accumulation – When prohibited. 51 

No person shall permit or suffer to accumulate, in or upon any yard, lot, place or premises, or 52 

upon any street or sidewalk adjacent to or abutting upon any lot, block, place or premises, owned 53 

or occupied by him for which he may be the agent, within the City limits, any stagnant or impure 54 

water, refuse, vegetables, decayed or decaying substances, garbage, swill, offal, fecal matter, 55 

urine or filth of any kind nor suffer such yard, lot, place or premises to be or remain in such 56 

condition as to cause or create a noisome or offensive smell or atmosphere, or thereby to be, 57 

become, cause or create a public nuisance. And is subject to abatement.  (Code 1962 § 12-4) 58 

8.04.020 Garbage – Receptacles – Removal.  59 

A.    Every person in the possession or occupancy, either as owner, tenant or otherwise, of any 60 

lot, block, place or premises in the City shall, prior to its removal, put, place and keep all 61 

garbage, household refuse, slops, swill, dirt, rubbish, offal or filth of any kind other than fecal 62 

matter or urine in boxes, cans or receptacles which shall be kept on the premises and the garbage 63 

shall not be allowed, suffered or permitted to become strewn or scattered on the premises. 64 

B.    The contents of such boxes shall be removed from the lot, yard or premises of the occupant, 65 

agent or owner of such lot before they create any noisome smell or become nuisances. (Code 66 

1962 § 12-5) 67 

8.04.030 Garbage – Deposit only in places designated.  68 

No person shall throw into or deposit upon any public street, highway, thoroughfare, public road, 69 

lane, alley, public place or grounds within the limits of the City or upon any private premises or 70 

anywhere, except the place or places designated by the Health Officer of the City Fairbanks 71 

North Star Borough Solid Waste Division, any glass, broken ware, offal, fecal matter, garbage, 72 

urine, dirt, rubbish or filth of any kind. (Code 1962 § 12-6) 73 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: February 6, 2017 

Possible Adoption:  February 21, 2017 
 

8.04.040 Garbage allowing to contaminate water.  74 

No person shall throw or place anything defiling, or any poisonous substance, decayed animal or 75 

vegetable matter or filth into, or cause or allow the same to pass or enter into any creek, well or 76 

river water or into any water pipe within the City whereby such water is rendered impure or 77 

unwholesome. (Code 1962 § 12-7) 78 

8.04.050 Garbage.  79 

Transportation only in covered receptacles. No person shall carry, remove or transport garbage, 80 

offal, dirt, rubbish, fecal matter, urine or filth of any kind, or any animal or vegetable substance 81 

in decomposing or offensive condition in any other than covered and enclosed vehicles or in any 82 

other than closed boxes, bags, cans or receptacles, through any street, avenue, alley, highway or 83 

public place in the City. (Code 1962 § 12-8) 84 

8.04.060 Dense smoke.  85 

It is unlawful for any person to permit the emission of any smoke from any source whatever of a 86 

density equal to or greater than that density described as No. 2 on the Ringlemann Chart, 87 

published by the United States Bureau of Mines. The emission of such smoke is declared to be a 88 

public nuisance and may be summarily abated as provided in this chapter. (Code 1962 § 12-9) 89 

8.04.070 Soot, cinders, noxious acids, fumes and gases.  90 

It is unlawful for any person to permit or cause to escape any soot, cinders, noxious acids, fumes 91 

or gases in such place or manner as to be detrimental to any person or to the public or to 92 

endanger the health, comfort and safety of any such person or the public, or in such a manner as 93 

to cause or have a tendency to cause injury or damage to property or business. The escape of 94 

such matter is declared to be a public nuisance, and may be summarily abated as provided in this 95 

chapter. (Code 1962 § 12-10) 96 

8.04.080 Unwholesome wells or ground water.  97 

A.    Any wells or ground water which is impure, contaminated or unwholesome, or which has 98 

been rendered impure, contaminated or unwholesome by reason of any defiling, hazardous 99 

substance, or poisonous substance, is declared a nuisance injurious to health; and no person or 100 

corporation shall cause, maintain or continue such nuisance. 101 

B.    “Hazardous substance” is defined as: 102 

1.    Any material, element or compound that is defined as a hazardous substance under the laws 103 

or regulations of the State of Alaska or the United States including, but not limited to, AS 104 

46.09.900 or 46.03.826, 18 AAC 75.990, 42 USC 9601 through 9657, or 29 CFR 1910.1200; or 105 

http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp#46.09.900
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp#46.03.826
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/aac.asp#18
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/aac.asp#18.75.990
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/9601
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/9657
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/29


Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: February 6, 2017 

Possible Adoption:  February 21, 2017 
 

2.    Any material, element or compound that, when it enters into or on the surface or subsurface 106 

land or water, endangers the public health or welfare, or fish, animals, vegetation or any part of 107 

the natural habitat in which they are found; or 108 

3.    Any substance the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation considers a regulated 109 

contaminant or contaminant of concern under 18 AAC 75.325(g); or 110 

4.    Any substance not defined by AS 46.09.900 or 46.03.826, 18 AAC 75.990, 42 USC 9601 111 

through 9657, or 29 CFR 1910.1200 or listed as a regulated contaminant under 18 AAC 75 shall 112 

be considered a “hazardous substance” when present in ground water in excess of tap water 113 

levels as defined by the Environmental Protection Agencies Regional Screening Level User’s 114 

Guide (U.S. EPA, 2011). 115 

C.    A person or corporation whose well or ground water has been rendered impure, 116 

contaminated or unwholesome by a hazardous substance that originated from the property of 117 

another shall not be in violation of this section or subject to the provisions of NPMC 8.04.170. 118 

(Ord. 15-16 § 2, 2015; Ord. 14-18 § 2, 2014. Code 1962 § 12-11) 119 

8.04.090 Fecal matter – Privies.  120 

No person shall maintain any unapproved outdoor privy or other outdoor toilet facility within the 121 

City, and such is declared to be a hazard to the good health of the community and a nuisance. All 122 

approvals must be by the City Council. (Code 1962 § 12-12) 123 

8.04.100 Fecal matter – Privies – Place of deposit to be designated.  124 

It is unlawful for any person or corporation to dump or deposit the contents of any privy or any 125 

fecal matter in any place than such as may be designated by the Health Officer of the City. (Code 126 

1962 § 12-14) 127 

8.04.110 Urinal – Requirements.  128 

All urinals of the City must be so constructed as not to leak and must have a tight vessel or 129 

receptacle into which the urine may drain; and no person who is the owner or occupant of, or 130 

agent for, any house, store, building or premises in the City to which a urinal belongs or 131 

appertains, shall use or keep the same in such condition as to cause a noisome or offensive smell 132 

so as to become a nuisance, and every person making or maintaining a urinal shall observe the 133 

regulations concerning them. (Code 1962 § 12-15) 134 

8.04.120 Filthy stables.  135 

Filthy and unwholesome stables, sheds, kennels, pens or places cows, horses, mules, dogs or 136 

other animals are kept within the City are declared nuisances injurious to health and no person 137 

shall create or maintain the same. (Code 1962 § 12-16) 138 

http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/aac.asp#18
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/aac.asp#18.75.325
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp#46.09.900
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp#46.03.826
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/aac.asp#18
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/aac.asp#18.75.990
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/9601
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/9657
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/29
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/aac.asp#18
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/aac.asp#18.75
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#%21/NorthPole08/NorthPole0804.html#8.04.170


Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: February 6, 2017 

Possible Adoption:  February 21, 2017 
 

8.04.130 Undressed dead animals.  139 

Undressed dead animals being or laying in the City, namely, any horse, mule or jack, or any cow, 140 

goat, calf, sheep, dog or swine, are declared nuisances injurious to health, and any person 141 

owning, possessing or controlling such dead animal, or any person who knowingly places such 142 

dead animal in any part of the City, shall remove the same to the place designated by the Health 143 

Officer. (Code 1962 § 12-17) 144 

8.04.140 Mad dogs and vicious dogs.  145 

A.    Vicious or mad dogs, or dogs bitten by hydrophobic dogs, are declared nuisances, and no 146 

person shall own or keep any mad dog, or dogs bitten by a hydrophobic dog, or allow the same 147 

to go upon any street, highway or public place of the City. 148 

B.    Every person owning, possessing or having charge of any mad or hydrophobic dog shall kill 149 

or cause to be killed, or any officer may kill or cause to be killed, any such dog which has gone 150 

mad or given symptoms of hydrophobia. No person shall permit, allow or suffer any vicious dog 151 

owned or kept by him to go un-muzzled upon any street, alley, highway or public place in the 152 

City. (Code 1962 § 12-18) 153 

8.04.150 Open excavations, basements and pits.  154 

A.    All open pits, unfilled excavations except gravel pits not in a populated section of the City 155 

fully contained within basements with uncovered doorways, window spaces or without 156 

subflooring in the City are declared to be a public nuisance, except that this subsection shall not 157 

apply to any of the above conditions where construction of a building is actively underway under 158 

a proper building permit and where the construction has not been suspended for more than 159 

fifteen days. 160 

B.    All owners of land upon which one of the conditions as set forth in subsection (A) of this 161 

section exists shall be required to fill with solid substance or protect from public entrance by 162 

enclosing with a protective fence as approved by the Fire/Building Official. (Ord. 81-5 § 1 163 

(Attachment A § 5-8), 1981) 164 

8.04.160 Disturbing the peace.  165 

A.    A person commits the offense of disturbing the peace if: 166 

1.    With intent to disturb the peace and privacy of another not physically on the same premises 167 

or with reckless disregard that the conduct is having that effect after being informed that it is 168 

having that effect, the person makes unreasonably loud noise. 169 

2.    In a public place or in a private place of another without consent, and with intent to disturb 170 

the peace and privacy of another or with reckless disregard that the conduct is having that effect 171 

after being informed that it is having that effect, the person makes unreasonable loud noise. 172 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: February 6, 2017 

Possible Adoption:  February 21, 2017 
 

3.    Between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., operates or uses a pile driver, pneumatic 173 

hammer, bulldozer, road grader, loader, power shovel, derrick, backhoe, power saw, manual 174 

hammer, motorcycle, snow machine or other instrument, appliance or vehicle which generates 175 

loud sounds or noise, after having been informed by another that such operations or use is 176 

disturbing the peace and privacy of others. 177 

4.    Keeps any dog or other animal which is allowed to engage in frequent or prolonged barking 178 

or other loud noise-producing activity, after having been informed by another that such frequent 179 

or prolonged barking or noise-producing activity is disturbing the peace and privacy of others. 180 

5.    Repeatedly or continuously sounds any horn or other sound-producing warning device on a 181 

motor vehicle when such repeated or continued sounding is not necessary to warn of any danger. 182 

6.    After being informed by a police officer that his conduct is in violation of this subsection 183 

(A), refuses to abate the prohibited activity. 184 

B.    As used in this section, “noise” is “unreasonably loud” if, considering the nature and 185 

purpose of the defendant’s conduct and the circumstances known to the defendant, including the 186 

nature of the location and the time of day or night, the conduct involves a gross deviation from 187 

the standard of conduct that a reasonable person would follow in the same situation. “Noise” 188 

does not include speech that is constitutionally protected. 189 

1.    “Loud sound” in a public place means sound which is loud enough to inhibit the ability of a 190 

not unduly sensitive person in the same place to speak freely without leaving the same place. 191 

2.    “Loud sound” in a private place means sound which is loud enough to awaken a not unduly 192 

sensitive person in another private place. 193 

3.    The inside and outside of buildings and separate residences within an apartment house, and 194 

separate rooms within a hotel, are different places. 195 

C.    The following sound or noise is not prohibited by this section: 196 

1.    Noise of safety signals, warning devices and emergency pressure relief valves when used for 197 

their warning or emergency purposes. 198 

2.    Noise produced by any authorized emergency vehicle when responding to an emergency call 199 

or when otherwise authorized by law or ordinance to activate its sirens or other warning devices. 200 

3.    Noises necessarily produced in the course of work required to protect persons or property 201 

from imminent peril. 202 

4.    Noise produced by any activity for which a permit has been issued pursuant to subsection 203 

(D) of this section. 204 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: February 6, 2017 

Possible Adoption:  February 21, 2017 
 

D.    Applications for a permit for relief from the application of this section to any activity on the 205 

basis of undue hardship may be made to the Mayor or his duly authorized representative. A 206 

nonrefundable application fee and a permit fee, as set forth in the City’s schedule of fees and 207 

charges for services, will be charged for the City’s processing of an application. Any permit 208 

granted by the Mayor under this subsection shall contain all conditions upon which such permit 209 

has been granted and shall specify a reasonable time that the permit shall be effective. The 210 

Mayor or duly authorized representative may grant the relief as applied for if he finds that: 211 

1.    Additional time is necessary for the applicant to alter or modify his activity or operation to 212 

comply with this section; or 213 

2.    The activity, operation or noise source will be of a temporary duration and cannot be done in 214 

a manner that would comply with other subsections of this section; and 215 

3.    No other reasonable alternative is available to the applicant. 216 

However, the Mayor may prescribe any conditions or requirements he deems necessary to 217 

minimize adverse effects upon the community or the surrounding neighborhood. (Ord. 14-29 § 2, 218 

2015; Ord. 13-07 § 2, 2013) 219 

8.04.170 Abatement – Notices – Costs – Fines.  220 

A.    The Mayor or Chief of Police or member of his staff upon receiving information or 221 

obtaining knowledge of the existence of any thing or things declared to be nuisances in this 222 

chapter may notify the person or corporation committing, creating, keeping, maintaining or 223 

causing the same to remove or cause the same to be removed within twenty-four hours, or such 224 

other reasonable times as may be determined by the City official after such notice has been duly 225 

given. 226 

B.    Regardless of whether notice has been given, the City may file a civil action in Superior 227 

Court to abate a nuisance and all costs and expenses of such abatement, removal, remediation or 228 

other remedy and full actual attorney fees and costs incurred by the City in any legal proceeding 229 

to abate the nuisance shall be paid by the persons or corporation committing, creating, keeping, 230 

maintaining or causing such nuisance or nuisances. 231 

C.    A person or corporation violating the provisions of this chapter may be punished by a fine 232 

of not more than $1,500 (one thousand five hundred dollars) $1,000 (one thousand dollars) per 233 

violation, in addition to all other remedies available in law or equity. A separate violation shall 234 

be deemed committed on each day during or on which a nuisance occurs or continues. (Ord. 14-235 

18 § 2, 2014. Code 1962 § 12-20) 236 

Section 3. Effective date.  This ordinance shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on the first City 237 

business day following its adoption. 238 

 239 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: February 6, 2017 

Possible Adoption:  February 21, 2017 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 240 

21st day of February, 2017.  241 

 242 

 243 

        _____________________________ 244 

        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 245 

 246 

 247 

ATTEST: 248 

 249 

 250 

___________________________ 251 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 252 

North Pole City Clerk 253 PASSED/FAILED 

Yes: 

No: 

Absent 

























Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 
Intorduced & Advanced:  February 6, 2017 

Possible Adoption:  February 21, 2017 

1 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-05 2 

 3 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO 4 
AMEND 2017 BUDGET BY TRANSFERING $17,000 FROM THE 5 
GENERAL FUND TO REPLACE THE BOILER AT THE PUBLIC 6 

WORKS SHOP 7 
 8 
WHEREAS, changes to the public services practices and policies is a continually changing 9 
requirement; and 10 
 11 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 12 
requirements of the City. 13 
 14 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Shop boiler is over 30 year old and it has begun to fail repeatedly 15 
and this threatens to result in serious damages to the Public Works shop, and 16 
 17 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Department returned over $118,299 dollar to the General Fund at 18 
the end of 2016 as documented in the attached end-of-year Public Works Budget, 19 
 20 
WHEREAS, it is projected to cost the Public Works Department up to $17,000 to replace its 21 
boiler, associated circulation pumps and ancillary equipment, and 22 
 23 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole that it 24 
approves the transfer of $17,000 from the General Fund to the Public Works Department as is 25 
detailed in the attached Fiscal Note for the replacement of the Public Works Shop boiler, 26 
associated circulation pumps and ancillary equipment. 27 
 28 
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not be codified. 29 
 30 
Section. Effective date. 31 
This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage. 32 
 33 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 34 
21st day of February, 2017. 35 
 36 
 37 

________________________________ 38 
Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 39 

 40 
ATTEST: 41 
 42 
__________________________________ 43 
Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 44 
North Pole City Clerk 45 PASSED/FAILED 

Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 



















Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 
Introduced & Advanced: February 6th 2017 

Possible Adoption: February 21, 2017 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 17-06 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO 3 
AMEND THE 2017 BUDGET BY ACCEPTING THE BRYNE JAG GRANT 4 

AND ADJUSTING THE POLICE DEPARTMENT BUDGET.  5 
 6 
WHEREAS, the 2017 Budget should be amended to conform to the requirements of the City, 7 
and 8 
 9 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole has received BRYNE JAG grant funds for several years, 10 
and  11 
 12 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole received $35,000 last year, and  13 
 14 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole was awarded for 2017, $107,950.00, and 15 
 16 
WHEREAS, expects to have $96,842.00 in allowable expenditures in 2017 for the Byrne JAG 17 
grant, and 18 
 19 
WHEREAS, budget amendments will allow for, the police vehicles that were purchased earlier 20 
this year, to be paid for with equipment outlay funds, and funds placed into travel and training to 21 
offset unexpected academy cost, and 22 
 23 
WHEREAS, the remaining savings can remain in wages and used as needed once approved by 24 
council at a later date,  25 
 26 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole the 27 
City amends the 2017 budget and accept the 2017 Byrne JAG grant. 28 
 29 
Section 1. This ordinance is of a special nature and shall not be included in the North Pole Code 30 
of Ordinances. 31 
 32 
Section 2. Effective date, February 6, 2017 33 
 34 
This ordinance shall become effective at 5:00 PM on the first City business day following 35 
adoption. 36 
 37 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 21st 38 
day of February 2017. 39 

 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
 45 
 46 



2 
 

PASSED/FAILED 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 

______________________________________ 1 
Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 2 

ATTEST: 3 
 4 
___________________________________ 5 
Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 6 
North Pole City Clerk 7 











































































Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce Ward 

Introduced and Adopted: February 6, 2017 

 

 

City of North Pole, Alaska RESOLUTION 17-01   
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 

RESOLUTION 17-01 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA SUPPORTING AND 3 
ENCOURAGING RENEWABLE ENERGY SOURCES BY ENHANCING POLICIES  4 

THAT EQUALLY SUPPORTS PRIVATE AND PUBLIC VENTURES AND  5 

ENCOURAGES SYSTEM EFFICIENCIES.  6 

WHEREAS, renewable energy research and development programs have demonstrated the 7 

technical and commercial viability of renewable energy resources; and  8 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole supports public and private sector development of 9 

renewable energy projects and promotes investment in renewable energy ventures in Alaska; 10 

and,  11 

WHEREAS, Alaska can and should be a leader in renewable energy development and 12 

promotion; and, 13 

WHEREAS, State and Federal level policy can help encourage development of renewable 14 
energy sources while requiring energy producers and distributors to work together to benefit the 15 

customer; and,  16 

WHEREAS, the State needs secure and sustainable energy and  that requires the best science to 17 
understand and predict the impacts of particular energy choices, as well as the effectiveness of 18 

strategies for minimizing environmental impacts and maximizing energy efficiency; and  19 

WHEREAS, energy policy should support and encourage development of renewable energy 20 

sources; and 21 

WHEREAS, diversification and securing the availability of reliable local energy supply aides 22 

the interior of Alaska by improving stability and enhancing grid reliability; and  23 

WHEREAS, renewable energy projects completed by the private sector can be effective tools to 24 

support a diversified and stable energy supply that minimizes the liability to the public; and 25 

WHEREAS, For economic and environmental reasons, the City of North Pole believes Alaska, 26 
the United States, and the planet will benefit greatly from the rapid development of renewable 27 

energy resources and development of system efficiencies; and  28 

WHEREAS, federal policy such Federal Energy Regulatory Commission’s (FERC’s) Order No. 29 

2000 issued in 1999, encouraged the voluntary formation of Regional Transmission 30 
Organizations (RTO’s) to administer the transmission grid on a regional basis throughout North 31 

America; and,  32 

WHEREAS, the purpose of an RTO is to promote economic efficiency, reliability and non-33 

discriminatory practices while reducing government oversight; and, 34 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce Ward 

Introduced and Adopted: February 6, 2017 

 

 

City of North Pole, Alaska RESOLUTION 17-01   
 

Page 2 of 2 

 

WHEREAS, implementation of policy such as an (RTO) in Alaska could benefit Alaskans 35 
greatly by providing system efficiencies and allowing smaller electric producers to develop 36 

throughout Alaska.  37 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the North Pole City Council Supports 38 

development and construction of renewable energy sources by private and the public sectors and 39 

policies that support system efficiencies. 40 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 41 

6th day of February, 2017. 42 

____________________________________ 43 

                          Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 44 

ATTEST: 45 

 46 
___________________________________ 47 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 48 

North Pole City Clerk 49 

PASSED/FAILED 

Yes: 

No: 

Absent 

 


	AG-02-06-17
	Min-01-17-17
	Min-01-30-17
	Memo: Ord 17-01 Creating Budget Procedures
	Ord 17-01 Creating Budget Procedures

	Memo: Ord 17-02 Amending Sales Tax
	Ord 17-02 Amending Sales Tax

	Ord 17-03 Nusiance Ord Update
	Ord 17-04 Stantec Amendment #4
	Fiscal Note
	Stantec 

	Memo: Ord 17-05 PW boiler
	Ord 17-05 PW boiler
	Fiscal Note
	Alaska Best Plumbing & Heating
	Altrol Inc.
	Rocky's

	Ord 17-06 JAG grant
	P.D. JAG award letter
	P.D. Official Request letter
	Fiscal Note - 1
	Fiscal Note - 2
	SOA JAG approval
	SOA Grant Award info
	Personnel Budget Detail
	Grant Agreement
	Project Narrative

	Res 17-01 Support of Renewable Energy



